Public Document Pack

O) Brent

Alcohol and Entertainment
Licensing Sub-Committee

Monday 12 January 2026 at 10.30 am
Boardrooms 1&2 - Brent Civic Centre, Engineers Way,
Wembley HA9 OFJ

Please note that this meeting will be held in person with members of the Sub-
Committee required to attend in person.

The press and public are also welcome to attend this meeting in
person. Please note the meeting is not scheduled for live webcast

Membership:
Members Substitute Members:
Councillors: Councillors:
Ahmed (Chair) Akram, Bajwa, Chohan, Mahmood, Maurice, L.
Long Smith, Clinton
Hylton

For further information contact: Devbai Bhanji, Governance Assistant
Tel: 020 8937 6841; Email: devbai.bhanji@brent.gov.uk

For electronic copies of minutes and agendas please visit:
Council meetings and decision making | Brent Council

(vrecydle

for Brent



https://www.brent.gov.uk/the-council-and-democracy/council-meetings-and-decision-making

Notes for Members - Declarations of Interest:

If a Member is aware they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business, they
must declare its existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent and
must leave the room without participating in discussion of the item.

If a Member is aware they have a Personal Interest** in an item of business, they must declare its
existence and nature at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent.

If the Personal Interest is also significant enough to affect your judgement of a public interest and
either it affects a financial position or relates to a regulatory matter then after disclosing the
interest to the meeting the Member must leave the room without participating in discussion of the
item, except that they may first make representations, answer gquestions or give evidence relating
to the matter, provided that the public are allowed to attend the meeting for those purposes.

*Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:

€) Employment, etc. - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit gain.

(b)  Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of expenses in carrying
out duties as a member, or of election; including from a trade union.

(c) Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between the Councillors or
their partner (or a body in which one has a beneficial interest) and the council.

(d) Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area.

(e) Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or longer.

)] Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which the
Councillor or their partner have a beneficial interest.

(@)  Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of business or
land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or of any one class of its issued
share capital.

**Personal Interests:

The business relates to or affects:

(a) Anybody of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management, and:

To which you are appointed by the council;

which exercises functions of a public nature;

which is directed is to charitable purposes;

whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion or policy (including a

political party of trade union).

(b) The interests a of a person from whom you have received gifts or hospitality of at least £50 as
a member in the municipal year;

or
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or
financial position of:
e You yourself;
e a member of your family or your friend or any person with whom you have a close
association or any person or body who is the subject of a registrable personal interest.



Agenda

Introductions, if appropriate.

ltem Page

1  Apologies for absence and clarification of alternate members
2  Declarations of Interests

Members are invited to declare at this stage of the meeting, the nature
and existence of any relevant disclosable pecuniary or personal interests
in the items on this agenda and to specify the item(s) to which they relate.

3  Application for a New Premises Licence by Mr Sathiaseelan 1-65
Easwarakumar for the premises known as Craven Park Local, 28
Craven Park Road, NW10 4AB, pursuant to the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3

LICENSING ACT 2003

Application for New Premises Licence

1. The Application

Name of Applicant: Mr Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar

Name & Address of Premises: | Craven Park Local, 28 Craven Park Road, NW10 4AB

Applicants Agent: The Licensing Guys — Nick Semper

The application is for a new premises licence as follows:

The supply of alcohol and to remain open from 7am to 10pm Monday to Sunday.

2. Background

The review of the Statement of Licensing Policy has introduced Cumulative Impact Zones
for all new or variation applications for ‘Off licences in the borough.

This application falls within a Cumulative Impact Zone.

The presumption is that any new licence or variation to an existing licence that increases
the scope for the sale of alcohol will not be granted unless the applicant can evidence that
the licence will not negatively impact on the licensing objectives.

3. Promotion of the Licensing Objectives
See separate page.
4, Relevant Representations
Representations have been received from The Licensing Police, Licensing Officers, and the

Ward Councillor

5. Interested Parties

None

Page 1



Policy Considerations
Policy 1 — Process for Applications

Conditions on the licence, additional to those voluntarily sought/agreed by the applicant,
may be considered. Conditions will focus on matters which are within the control of
individual licensee and which relate to the premises or areas being used for licensable
activities, the potential impact of the resulting activities in the vicinity. If situations arise
where the licensing objectives may be undermined but cannot be dealt with by the use
of appropriate conditions the Licensing Authority will consider whether it is appropriate for a
licence to be granted or continue to operate.

Determination of the Application

Members can take the following steps when determining a new premises licence
application:

e grant the licence;

¢ exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;

o refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor;

e reject the application

Associated Papers

Application Form & plan
Police Representation
Licensing Representation
Councillor Kelcher Rep
OS Map

moowp

Page 2



LICENSING ACT 2003

Licence:Premises Licence New Application
Application No: 36684

Dear Sir/Madam,

Applicant:Mr Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar

Date Received: 13 November 2025

Regulatory Services
Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way
Wembley

HA90F]

TEL: 020 8937 5359
EMALIL: bnsiness.licence@brent.gov.uk
WEB: www.brent.gov.uk

Online Ref. No: 20663
Application No: 36684
Date: 14 November 2025

An application was made to Brent Council under the Licensing Act 2003 by the above-named applicant. Representations
must specify in detail the grounds of opposition and must relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.

In order that consideration of the application may not be delayed, it will be appreciated if a reply can be sent to us by:11 December

2025.

Yours faithfully

SimaNaran
Administration Officer
Regulatory Services

Part 1- Premises Details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordinance survey map reference or description

Craven Park Local
28 Craven Park Road, London, Brent, NWIO 4AB

Telephone Number at premises (if any): 07863900903

Non domestic rateable value: 19250

Page 3



0A00 ¢ 7 "PPIEAATO SAOAFID

Proposed Licence Holder:
Mr Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar

1 CATO $A0AFIO
Mr Nick SEMPER

TL Guys Ltd

The Licensing Guys PO Box 303, LLANYMYNECH, Shropshire, SY10 6FE
licensing@thelicensingguys.com
01432700024

0A00 07 /DAOAGETC SAEAAGIA

When do you want the premises licence to start? 11-12-2025

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you want it to end?

1f 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the number expected to attend:
Please give a general description of the premises: Convenience Store with Off Licence and Post Office

7 EAQ TEAATOAAIA AROEOEOEAD AT UTO ETOATA OF carry 1T £0T T 0EA BOA TE0ACe

Section J: Sale of alcohol: Off the premises

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

ection J: Sale or Supply of Alcohol: Off the premises
a Start Time End Time
Monday 07:00 22:00
Tuesday 07:00 22:00
[Wednesday 07:00 22:00
[Thursday 07:00 22:00
Friday 07:00 22:00
Saturday 07:00 22:00
Sunday 07:00 22:00
Nil
Nil

Sathiaseelan EASWARAKUMAR
Date of birth:

Page 4



Licence Number:
Issuing authority:
#TTAAOTO ET OAODAR) Tk #EEIAOATY _Ei

The opening hours of the premises

Day SOAQ) 4ETA End Time
Monday 07:00 22:00
Tuesday 07:00 22:00
[Wednesday 07:00 22:00
Thursday 07:00 22:00
Friday 07:00 22:00
Saturday 07:00 22:00
Sunday 07:00 22:00
Nil
Nil

Ay = ATAOAIZ All F100 TEAATOETC TAEARGEOAD A0 A Av AQ) We recognise that these Premises lie within a Cumulative Impact Assessment
area. Mention of any rebuttable presumption against the grant of a Premises Licence was expunged from the s182 Guidance in April
2018, being substituted by the stated effected of the adoption of a CIA is a 'Strong Statement of Intent'. We believe that that the grant
of a Premises Licence at this location with this comprehensive raft of Licensing Conditions is unlikely to add to Cumulative Impact
already experienced in the area.

Aq 4EA DOAOATCFIT T ACE WA ATA AEGTOAAQ] Please see attached Proposed Operating Schedule.
K| OOAIEA OARAOUY Please see attached Proposed Operating Schedule.

A 4ER DORORTETT Tk DOAIEA TOROATAAL Please see attached Proposed Operating Schedule.

K 4EA DOTOAKETT 1% AEEIA0AT 0T T EAOT{ Please see attached Proposed Operating Schedule.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Operating Schedule
28 Craven Park Road, HARLESDEN, NW10 4AB

1. PREVENTION of CRIME & DISORDER
CCTV:
CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of
EVIDENTIAL QUALITY in all lighting conditions, particularly facial recognition. Cameras shall
encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits, outside areas, and all areas
where the sale/ supply of alcohol occurs.

A monitor shall be mounted on the wall at the premises where it is clearly visible to all
members of the public. The monitor shall show the live CCTV footage being recorded.

Equipment MUST be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and date stamped.

Recordings MUST be kept in date order, numbered sequentially and kept for a period of 31
days and handed to Police on reasonable request.

The Premises Licence Holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member of staff is
capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable format to the
Police/Local Authority on reasonable request

The Recording equipment and tapes/discs shall be kept in a secure environment under the
control of the DPS or other responsible named individual.

An operational weekly log report must be maintained endorsed by signature, indicating the
system has been checked and is compliant, in the event of any failings actions taken are to
be recorded.

In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the Premises Licence holder/DPS
MUST report the failure to the Police on contact number 101 as soon as reasonably
practicable.

INCIDENT LOG:

An incident log must be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to
an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or the Police,
which must record the following:

a) all crimes reported to the venue

b) all ejections of patrons

c) any complaints received relevant to the Licensing Objectives

d) any incidents of disorder

e) any recovered drugs or offensive weapons

f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment

~ o~ o~ o~ o~ —~

Page 7



(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

STAFF TRAINING:

All serving staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in Responsible alcohol retailing
to the minimum standard of Responsible Alcohol Retailing Training - Level 1 or any other
equivalent recognised training. This training shall include training on refusing sales to
drunken persons, vulnerability and proxy sales.

Training records shall be kept on the premises and shall be produced to the police or an
‘authorised person’ (as defined by Section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003) or an authorised
Trading Standards the Council on demand.

There sha;; be no sales of miniature bottles of spirits.

There shall be no single sales of cans of beer, cider or lager

There shall be no sales of cans or of beer, cider or lager exceeding 5.5% ABV.

PUBLIC SAFETY

All requirements and responsibilities pertaining to the lawful and responsible operation of

the premises covered by primary legislation, will be complied with — e.g. building regs, health
and safety, food labelling and fire prevention.

PREVENTION of PUBLIC NUISANCE

GOOD NEIGHBOURLINESS:

Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to
neighbours or residents.

Prominent, clear and legible signage shall be displayed at all exits to the premises requesting
the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and the area
quietly.

PROTECTION of CHILDREN from HARM

AGE VERIFICATION

The premises shall operate Challenge 25.

Prominent, clear and legible signs shall also be displayed at all entrances to the premises as
well as at, at least one location behind any counter advertising the scheme operated.

REFUSAL REGISTER

A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have been
unable to provide required ldentification to prove their age. Such records shall be kept for a
period of 12 months and will be produced to the police or authorised officer of the Council
on demand.

Page 8



The only acceptable form of identification shall be a Passport, Photo Driving Licence or Proof
of Age Standard Scheme card carrying the PASS hologram.

ALCOHOL SALES - ONLINE or via APP:
All sales of alcohol arising from an online order for delivery must be paid for, at the point of
ordering, by credit or debit card.

The delivery of alcohol shall be made only to a residential or business address and to a
customer ordinarily resident or employed at the address. Challenge 25 must be applied.
Orders will not be accepted or completed to any person in a public place (for example a street
corner, park or bus stop).

Where a third-party courier is used to supply alcohol, only reputable courier services will be
utilised and they must provide an age verification service or adopt a policy of checking age
and ID at the time of delivery.

The courier must ensure that any order containing alcohol is received by a person over 18

years of age and measures must be in place for the refusal of delivery of items containing
alcoholwhere no person over 18 years of age is able to receive the order.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Note: Drawing issued for licencing purposes only.
r— — — — — — 7 = 1:50
I 1m — 0 m 2m 3m 4m 5m
Store
| Room
: STORAGE
| O
: ®
STAFF
I ROOM
| |
I Gondpla |
I Display Gondola
I Display |
| O |
l I
SHOP |
c Office
I l Legend
I | 3 fire extinguishers-
I | ¥vater, CO2 and
Cigarettes, oam
min alpohol, Gpndola |
I i i [ isp/ay Fire escape sign
Staff Retai |
I Counter Smoke Detector/
Alarm
I il | Demise of shop / area for
| = T T which licence to sell & store
I alcohol is sought
- _ o
]
Pavement Pavement
Property address : Pfoject: . . . Proj. No: _ - Date é Food Saf 7)
28 CRAVEN PARK ROAD Licencing Application Page 11 | soue AA1 /1ol\c/)‘ % i;lE May 272024 | | (NI 2riotet
LONDON NW].O 4AB Drawing Title: e rege: TMe:;b. g?gg:gg;::fo
ShOp Unit Plan Dwg No: LI c—01 A3 ‘\Em: ' admtraining58@gmail.com )




This page is intentionally left blank



ML \Working together for a safer London

POLICE

TERRITORIAL POLICING

Craven Park Local NW BCU Licensing Department - Brent
Mr Easwarakumar Wembley Police Station

28, Craven Park Road 603, Harrow Road

Harlesden Wembley

NW10 4AB HAD 2HH

Tel: 07500 087 115
Email: Phil.S.Graves@met.police.uk

Your Ref: 36684
Our ref: 01QK/689/25/3122NW

Date: Saturday 6" December 2025

Police representations to the application for a new Premises Licence for ‘Craven Park Local, 28
Craven Park Road, Harlesden NW10 4AB’

Police certify that we have considered the application shown above and wish to make representations
that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to the Council’s Licensing Objectives
for the reasons indicated below.

Officer: PC Phil Graves
Licensing Constable 3122NW

An officer of the Metropolitan Police, in whose area the premises are situated, who is authorised for
the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible Authority’ under the Licensing Act
2003.

The application has been made for a new premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing act 2003.
The Police representations are concerned with all four of the licensing objectives, namely:

* The prevention of crime and disorder;
e Public safety;

¢ The prevention of public nuisance; and

e The protection of children from harm.

The Application

The application is for a new section 17 Premises License for an off license wishing for the sale of
alcohol from 07.00 hours to 22.00 hours seven days a week. The venue is Craven Park Road which
falls into the Harlesden Cumulative Impact Zones (ClIZ). CIZ’s where created by Brent council to
combat crime, street drinking and ASB in the worst parts of the borough. Below is a link to the
council’s CIZ.

https://www.brent.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/alcohol-club-and-entertainment-
licences/premises-licencetfciz

Page 13



https://www.brent.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/alcohol-club-and-entertainment-licences/premises-licence#ciz
https://www.brent.gov.uk/business/licences-and-permits/alcohol-club-and-entertainment-licences/premises-licence#ciz

As you can see from the link there is an assumption that any new off license application will be
refused unless the applicant can demonstrate that their venue would not have a negative effect on
the licensing objectives.

“Where an application for a new off-licence or for variations to off-licences is received (which would
increase the sale of alcohol, including through longer hours), the presumption is that the application will
be refused unless the applicant can satisfactorily evidence that their application or variation will not
negatively impact on the licensing objectives.”

An almost identical application was submitted by Mr Easwarakumar in June 2024. This application
was quite rightly refused by the subcommittee. Reading this current application and the last | see no
real difference between the two, for example: -

(i) The applicant is still asking for the sale of alcohol from 07.00 hours in a designated CIZ

(i) The venue makes no reference to a specialised theme, leaving the presumption that this is
another bog standard off-license.

(iii) The application refers that it is ‘unlikely to add to cumulative impact already experienced in
the area’. This statement acknowledges the area is suffering from crime and ASB but can
only state that it is ‘unlikely’ to add to the existing problems.

The crime figures are similar to those of the last application, very high with ASB, violence and sexual
assaults making up the majority of the figures. These crimes are typically fuelled by alcohol, which is
one of the main purposes of the CIZ which is trying to lower the sale of alcohol and lower the crime
figures in an area already suffering from a high crime rate.

The crime figures below are taken from the Met Police web page for September 2025. As per June
2024 the crime figures are still very high. If you look at the last image (zoomed in shot of Craven Park
Road) you can see that the majority of the crime are all based around Craven Park Road where the CIZ
quite rightly exists

Crimes and priorities

Top reported crimes in this area Crime map Our priorities
Top reported crimes Crime levels in your area
Most commonly reported crimes during Sep 2025 Crime for last year
Anti-social behaviour 95 Crime per Month
400
Violence and sexual offences 58
200
Other theft 21
0
Shoplifting 20 Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2026 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025 2025

View as a list v

e uklaraaionr-arealmat thrent/harlasden-and-kancal-araan/ahaut-ue/fton-ranarted-erimas-in-this-area

Page 14




| S— |

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Crime type and time period title

All Crimes (283) v
\“ BAPS Shi ~ High Re. e
A e
G\:»\“\ Mandifyo WILLESDEN September 2025 -
N
ROUNDWOOD - + 283 crimes were reported here in
September 2025
L5 Anti-social behaviour 95
Violence and sexual offences 58
Other theft 21
°8 Qu
el L All other crime 109
m Central Middlesex -
Hospita 5
Qe

gy
Q:v St M. Catkh
S St Mary’s Catholi
S P (L)
Cargiant @ sainsbury's @ n

T
KENSING
Keyboard shortcuts  Map data ©2025 Google 200miL—1  Terms

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Crime type and time period title

N ENR®” §
W I All Crimes (283) ¥
8 s
“\3“ -
AN
&
w‘\\e“l September 2025 v
)
2 v
x
&
Q.
@
%
%
¢4
® %
&
5 5 hiy &
g « &
o > 3
RS
&
v, 15
agle Tyres
2 <
R -—
\ 42 o 19
TedTrage Produ L - F s®
Poge Ags. 2 Keyboard shortcuts + Mapdata ©2025 100 M ket Terms

Below is a list of off licenses in the immediate vicinity. As you can see there is already an ample supply
of shops supplying alcohol to the community. The list below only shows off licenses, with no

restaurants included.

98, Craven Park Parade  Off License

102, Craven Park Road Off License

14, Craven Park Road Wholesalers

126, Craven Park Road Convenience Store / Off License
24, Craven Park Road Convenience Store / Off License

Corner Shop

Craven Park Off License
Housewife Cash & Carry
Kotoko Mini Market

Tamirez Deli
The Liquor Store 43, Craven Park Road Off License
Who’s Next Food & Wine 6, Library Parade Off License

69-71 Craven Park Road Café / Off License

New Atlas Café
68, Craven Park road Convenience Store / Off License

Surpesave

Page 15




Summary

(i) This appears to be an almost identical application that was refused by the subcommittee, to
that submitted by Mr Easwarakumar in June 20024.

(i) The venue falls within a CIZ
(iii) This is a standard off license offering no special theme.
(iv) The applicant wants to sell alcohol from 07.00 hours in a CIZ
(v) Thereis already a very high crime and ASB rate in the area.

(vi) There are already more than enough off licenses in the area supply alcohol to the
community.

Due to the above police oppose this application in full regardless of what stringent conditions could

be added to the premises license. Failing to object to this application would undermine all four of the
licensing objectives.

Yours Sincerely,

PC Phil Graves 3122NW
NW BCU - Brent Licensing
Philip.Graves@met.police.uk

Page 16




From: The Licensing Guys [ Licensing ]

Sent: 06 December 2025 13:22

To: Phil.S.Graves

Cc: Business Licence ; Legister, Linda <

Subject: Re: New Premises - Craven Park Local, 28 Craven Park Road, NW10 4TH -
36684 - Police Reps

Hi Phil,
Thanks for early sight of your Rep.
Are there any Conditions we can offer to address your concerns?

Nick S for TLG

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Brent Civic Centre
Engineers Way

(CD) e
D) Brent

TEL 020 8937 2928
EMAIL rhea.vagarwal@brent.gov.uk
WEB www.brent.gov.uk

Mr Nick Semper
TL Guys Ltd

PO Box 303
Llanymynech
Shropshire
SY10 6FE

09 December 2025
Our Ref: 36684
Dear Sir/Madam,

Licensing Representation to the Initial Application for the Premises Licence at Craven
Park Local, 28 Craven Park Road, NW10 4AB

| certify that | have considered the application shown above and | wish to make a representation
that the likely effect of the grant of the application is detrimental to the Licensing Objectives for
the reasons indicated below.

An officer of the Licensing Authority, in whose area the premises are situated, who is
authorised for the purposes of exercising its statutory function as a ‘Responsible
Authority’ under the Licensing Act 2003.

The application has been made for a new premises licence under section 17 of the Act.

The Licensing Authority representations are primarily concerned with the four licensing objectives;
the prevention of crime and disorder;

public safety;

the prevention of public nuisance; and

the protection of children from harm.

Cumulative Impact Zone (ClZ)

In 2022, Brent Council reviewed its Cumulative Impact Policy after assessing crime data from
various sources. This led to the implantation of the Cumulative Impact Zones (CIZs) in specified
areas within Brent, as outlined in the latest Statement of Licensing Policy (2025 — 2030).

Evidence shows a strong correlation between concentrations of off-licences and incidents of
alcohol related anti-social behaviour, particularly associated with street drinking.

The significant and notable increase in alcohol related crime and anti-social behaviour is having
an adverse impact in some of the areas and neighbourhoods which generates complaints from
esidents, councillors and the Police. This undermines the licensing objectives and also has
potential to undermine the vitality of Brent's town centres.

Page 19


http://www.brent.gov.uk/

Harlesden has been identified as one of twelve Cumulative Impact Zones (ClZs) in Brent, where
the authorising of further licences may undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Harlesden

Harlesden town centre consists of multiple parades of shops that run along Craven Park Road,
Park Parade and High Street, Harlesden.

The Statement of Licensing Policy describes the area as a hotspot for alcohol flagged calls to the
Police for crime, anti-social behaviour and street drinking. Recent data shows the entire town
centre suffers from high levels of alcohol related issues, including residential streets off the main
town centre such as Rucklidge Avenue, Wendover Road, Buckingham Road and St Albans Road.

All other town centres in Brent suffers from street drinking; however, in parts of Harlesden such
as Craven Park Road and High Street, the street drinking interrelates with drug misuse and violent
crime.

Between 1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022 there were 321 reports to the police, including 184 relating
to anti-social behaviour, 28 relating to public order breaches and 87 reports relating to
violence/sexual.

The streets to be included in Harlesden are:

Craven Park Road
Craven Park

High Street

Park Parade
Manor Park Road

The below map shows violence with injury crimes.

The purpose of the CIZ in Harlesden (Craven Park Road) is to address the issues mentioned
above.

The Premises

The premises is located at 28 Craven Park Road, NW10 4AB within a ground-floor commercial
unit beneath a residential block of flats, along a parade of shops that include existing off-licenes
and food-led businesses

Page 20



The town centre falls between, Harlesden and Kensal Green ward and is one of the most deprived
areas in the borough. A number of existing off licences are also within a 5 minute walk.

Who's Next, 6 Library Parade 1 minute (285ft)
Komoto Mini Mart 126 Craven Park Road 5 minutes (0.2mile)
Craven Park Off Licence, 102 Craven Park 6 minutes (0.3mile)
Corner Road Shop, 98 Craven Park Road 4 minutes (0.2mile)
Supersave, 68 Craven Park Road 2 minutes (430ft)
PS Drinks, 43 Craven Park Road 1 minute (246ft)
Tamariz Deli, 24 Craven Park Road 1 minutes (79ft)

Housewives Cash & Carry, 14 Craven Park Road 1 minutes (98ft)

Shady’s, 164 Manor Park Road 1 minute (194ft)
Poziomka, 30-32 High Street 3 minutes (0.1mile)
Way 2 Save, 37-41 High Street 4 minutes (0.2mile)

Public Space Protection Order (PSPO)

The entire Borough of Brent is subject to a Public Space Protection Order for street drinking, and
itis an offence if a person fails to comply with a request to cease drinking alcohol by an authorised
officer.

If a police officer reasonably believes that a person is, or has been, consuming intoxicating liquor
within these areas, the officer may require the person concerned:

a) not to consume in that place anything which is, or which the officer reasonably believes to
be, intoxicating liquor

b) to surrender anything in his/her possession which is, or which the officer reasonably
believes to be, intoxicating liquor or a container for such liquor (other than a sealed
container)

c) An officer may dispose of anything surrendered to him/her as above.

d) Issue fixed penalty notices on offenders

e) Prosecute persistent offenders

However, in reality there are limited police officer resources, which in practice would prevent the
above from being enforced. This therefore places a greater emphasis on the responsibility of
those premises that are selling alcohol for consumption off the premises. If off licences did not
exist, the number of street drinkers would decline.

Page 21



Consultation visit:

A visit was conducted to the premises in respect to the new application on Friday 28 November
2025 at approximately 11:00hrs.

/" pOST
*  \OFFICE

The premiss plan indicates a traditional off-licence layout which also provides the service of a
post office.

The applicant and proposed DPS, Mr Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar, was not present at the time
of my visit however, we spoke over a telephone call and arranged a subsequent telephone
appointment to discuss the application in more detail.

Discussion with applicant:

On Thursday 4 December 2025, | spoke with Mr Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar via telephone
whereby the following questions were asked and recorded below:

1.

Rhea Vagarwal (LA): Did you read the application and are you happy with the content?
Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): Yes.

Rhea Vagarwal (LA): Are you aware the premises falls within a ClIZ, and do you know
what that means?

Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): Yes, | do. | have other shops under the same
zone in Burnt Oak with Barnet Council which | got last year.

Rhea Vagarwal (LA) — What has changed in this new application compared with the one
that was refused last year?

Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): Nothing was concrete last time; | didn’t have any
lease on my name or post office contract. Now | have been running for last 1 year and |
have no issues with the community.

Rhea Vagarwal (LA) — What new or strengthened measures are you proposing to promote
the licensing objectives and ensure that no further cumulative impact is caused?
Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): There are other issues such as drugs that | am
aware of, but | will be compliant with all the licensing objectives...no single cans or
miniatures so it leads to cutting down people drinking on the street. When a customer
comes and asks, we will turn them back and say we don’t have.

Page 22



5. Rhea Vagarwal (LA): Can you list the 4 licensing objectives?
Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): Prevent of crime and disorder, public safety,
prevention of public nuisance and protection of children of harm.

6. Rhea Vagarwal (LA): Do you know about Public Space Protection Order in Brent?
Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): To help particular issues with local residents.
Since we have taken over the shop, we had councillors that had concerns with parking,
and we have controlled it.

7. Rhea Vagarwal (LA): There are many existing off licences in the local area, why do you
want to open another off licence?
Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): It's not purely selling alcohol. We want our
customers to purchase all goods in one place to make it easier. This area on record might
have crime but since | took over, | only had a break in with stolen cigarettes, but they are
arrested now because we worked with Police.

8. Rhea Vagarwal (LA): If the application is refused, will you keep the lease and continue to
trade?
Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): | am applying for a certain time because | am
really keen to get more footfall and increase sales. | already told post office, they are giving
it, | have amazon services now so | hope | can.

9. Rhea Vagarwal (LA): During my visit on Friday 28 November 2025, | observed two males
who appeared to be intoxicated enter the premises. If the application was to be granted,
how would you manage intoxicated individuals entering the premises to purchase more
alcohol?

Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar (LH/DPS): They aren’t allowed to drink. And we won't sell
alcohol to them. | don’t have issues in the last 1 year.

Based on my conversation with applicant, Mr Easwarakumar has demonstrated some
understanding of the area profile. Whilst | appreciate the applicant's intention to introduce
numerous services to the community and willingness to accept proposed conditions from
respective responsible authorities, the proposed business model lacks distinctiveness.

Summary

The Statement of Licensing Policy stipulates that any new premises licence application falling
within a specified Cumulative Impact Zone will not be granted unless the applicant provides
compelling evidence that the proposed licensable activities will not contribute to the issues the
ClIZ seeks to address, such as street drinking and alcohol-related anti-social behaviour.

Whilst a business plan has been provided, it fails to demonstrate that granting this application
would avoid negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives and to the
contrary, add to the issues of an existing saturated area.

There is nothing to suggest that the premises will be offering any niche products other than typical
goods you would expect to find at a local off licence bearing in mind, there are many existing
grocery and off licenced premises within the vicinity.

Harlesden is a challenging area of the Borough fuelled with anti-social behaviour, including street
drinking, therefore adding another off licence in the area will not benefit the wider community in
my opinion. It is on this basis, that the Licensing Authority ask that the application for a new
premises licence is refused by the Licensing Sub-Committee.

Page 23



Adding conditions to a premises licence, in the Licensing Authority’s opinion, is not adequate
however, if the Sub-Committee decides that there is sufficient evidence to the contrary, the
Licensing Authority would request the following points be included in the operating schedule or
added as conditions on the premises licence:-

1.

The premises shall operate and maintain a digital colour CCTV system. The CCTV
system shall continually record whilst the premises are open for licensable activities, and
all recordings shall be kept for 31 days.

The CCTV system shall capture clear images of every person entering or leaving the
premises with further CCTV cameras covering the publicly accessible areas stipulated on
the premises plan, including the frontage of the premises.

A member of staff trained in the use of the CCTV system shall be available at the premise
at all times that the premises are open to the public. This member of staff shall be able to
view, download and make copies of any CCTV requests made by the police or authorised
officer(s).

CCTV footage shall be provided within 24 hours upon request by Police and any authorised
Officers from Brent Council, in a readily accessible format on removable media (l.e., USB,
hard drive, CD etc..) or via digital transfer.

The CCTV system shall display the correct date and time on any footage.

Signage stating that CCTV is in operation shall be clearly and prominently displayed at the
premises.

A "Challenge 25" policy shall be adopted and adhered to. Acceptable proof of age shall
include identification bearing the customer’'s photograph, date of birth and integral
holographic mark or security measure. Suitable means of identification would include
PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licence and passport.

A notice stating “No proof of age — No sale” shall be displayed at the point of sale.

A notice asking customers to leave quietly from the premises shall be displayed by the
exit/entrance.

10.A copy of the premises licence summary including the hours which licensable activities

are permitted shall be visible from the outside of each entrance to the premises.

11. Any staff directly involved in selling alcohol for retail to consumers, staff who provide

training and all managers will undergo regular training (every 12 months) of Licensing Act
2003 legislation. This will be documented and signed for by the DPS and the member of
staff receiving the training. This training log shall be kept on the premises and made
available for inspection by police and relevant authorities upon request.

The training records shall detail:-

) Staff member’'s name

Staff member’s signature

Name of person providing the training
Date of training

Training on the licensing objectives
Training on use of the incident log

a
b

—
AU RURS)

Page 24



g) Training on refusal of sale
h) Training on challenge 25 policy
i) Training on the use and downloading (providing copies) of the CCTV system

This training shall be kept at the venue and made available immediately upon request to
the police or authorised officers from Brent Council.

12.An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available for inspection on request
to an authorised officer of Brent Council or the Police, which will record the following:

all crimes reported to the venue

all ejections of patrons

any complaints received

any faults in the CCTV system

any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

O O T O
N N N N N

D

Any entries into the log shall be made within 24 hours of any incident and shall contain the
time/date of the incident, the nature of the incident, a description of the people involved,
the action taken and details of the person responsible for the management of the premises
at the time of the incident.

13. A refusal book detailing date and time of the refused sale, the name of the person refusing

the sale and a description of the person attempting to purchase alcohol, shall be kept and
maintained and made available for inspection at the premises.
Any entries into the log shall be made within 24 hours of any incident and shall contain the
time/date of the incident, the nature of the incident, a description of the people involved,
the action taken and details of the person responsible for the management of the premises
at the time of the incident.

14.All deliveries (to the premises) shall take place during the normal working day (i.e. 09:00
to 18:00 daily).

15. A clear and unobstructed view into the premises shall be maintained at all times.

16. There shall be no single cans or bottles of beer or cider shall be sold at the premises.
17.There shall be no miniatures of spirts or wine sold at the premises.

18.No high strength beers, lagers, and ciders above 6.0% ABYV shall be stocked or sold.

19. There shall be no self-service of spirits on the premises with all spirits being located behind
counter.

20.All alcoholic drinks shall be clearly labelled or marked with the name of the premises.
21.A suitable intruder alarm and panic button shall be fitted and maintained.

22.A personal licence holder shall be at the premises at all times whilst open for licensable
activities.

23.The premises licence holder shall display notice warning customers against drinking on
the street in line with Brent Council’'s Public Spaces Protection Order.

Page 25



24.The premises licence holder shall ensure that all tills in operation at the premises
automatically provide age-related prompts to staff to check the age of the buyer when
alcoholic products are passed through the till, or entered onto the till, for sale.

25. A lockable safe with deposit slot and anti-fishing mechanisms must be used at the counter
till area in order to prevent crime.

26.Drivers shall not deliver to any person anywhere other than that at the residential / business
address given when the order was placed. There shall be NO deliveries made to any
open/public spaces.

27. Delivery drivers should be asked to keep noise to a minimum when collecting deliveries
and must not be permitted to loiter unnecessarily.

28.Outside of the hours authorised for the sale of alcohol, all alcohol within the trading area
is to be secured behind locked grills, locked screens or locked cabinet doors so as to
prevent access to the alcohol by customers or staff.

Supply of Alcohol (Changed)
Monday to Sunday — 10:00hrs to 22:00hrs

Opening Hours (No Change)
Monday to Sunday — 07:00hrs to 22:00hrs

Yours Sincerely

Rhea Vagarwal
Licensing Enforcement Officer
Regulatory Services

Page 26



From: Kelcher, Councillor Matt <Cllr.Matt.Kelcher@brent.gov.uk>

Sent: 24 November 2025 10:50

To: Business Licence <business.licence@brent.gov.uk>

Cc: Patel, Councillor Mili <Cllr.Mili.Patel@brent.gov.uk>; Chan, Councillor Jumbo
<Cllr.Jumbo.Chan@brent.gov.uk>

Subject: Representation Against Application 36684 — Harlesden Cumulative Impact
Zone

Dear Licensing Team,

I wish to make a formal representation against Application 36684 on the basis of all four
licensing objectives, as the premises are located within the Harlesden Cumulative
Impact Zone (ClZ), referred to by the applicant as the Cumulative Impact Assessment
(CIA) area.

I am sure my co councillors in copy would join me in advocating for a refusal.
Grounds for Representation
1. Cumulative Impact Zone Policy

o The presence of a CIZ means that granting a new licence should only
occur where the applicant can demonstrate in the operating schedule
that they would not be adding to the cumulative impact.

o The applicant states that granting the licence would be “unlikely to add to
cumulative impact already experienced in the area.” This does not meet
the policy requirement of “would not add impact.” By their own
admission, the applicant cannot guarantee zero additional impact, which
is the standard required under the guidance.

2. Evidence from CIA and Local Issues

o Guidance under Section 182 states:
“Anyone making a representation may base it on the evidence published
in the CIA, or the fact that a CIA has been published.”

o Craven Park Road, within the Harlesden CIZ, has a recognised problem
with street drinking linked to drug dealing, driven by the high availability of
alcohol from numerous outlets.

o Atthe mostrecent Safer Neighbourhood Ward Panel meeting on 19
November, attended by residents, police, and councillors, street drinking
on Craven Park Road was identified as one of the three ward priorities.

3. Public Safety and Crime Prevention

Page 27



o Increased alcohol availability in an area already suffering from street
drinking and associated crime will undermine efforts to reduce anti-social
behaviour and drug-related activity.

4. Public Nuisance and Protection of Children

o Street drinking contributes to disorder and creates an unsafe environment
for families and children in the area.

Policy and Decision-Making

If Brent Council decides to grant this licence, it must provide the applicant, the Chief
Officer of Police, and all parties who made relevant representations with clear reasons
for granting the application, including any reasons for departing from its own policy.

Given the existing situation on Craven Park Road and the applicant’s inability to
demonstrate compliance with the CIZ policy, | respectfully request that Application
36684 be refused.

Best wishes,

Matt

Cllr Matt Kelcher

Labour Councillor for Harlesden and Kensal Green Ward

Chair, Planning Committee

07721 233051 | cllr.matt.kelcher@brent.gov.uk | Twitter | Facebook

Click here to subscribe to our regular newsletter from the Harlesden and Kensal Green
Councillors

Page 28


mailto:cllr.matt.kelcher@brent.gov.uk
https://twitter.com/mattkelcher
https://www.facebook.com/HarlesdenAndKensalGreenLabourCouncillors/?ref=page_internal
https://gmail.us13.list-manage.com/subscribe?u=da12ad7bd54a516a180762dd6&id=a469889699

Basemap Map

i

X

T\
-

\‘ o

.4*_ .

0.02 0.04 kilometres

0

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



g4 House of Commons
m Library

Research Briefing

9 July 2025

Alcohol licensing: cumulative
impact assessments

By John Woodhouse

1

Summary

1 The Licensing Act 2003 and cumulative impact
2  Cumulative impact assessments (CIAS)

3 Evaluation of CIAs




Number 07269

Image Credits
Bar-counter-beer-taps by Zarya Maxim. Licensed by Adobe Stock id
#216611140 - no copyright required.

Disclaimer

The Commons Library does not intend the information in our research
publications and briefings to address the specific circumstances of any
particular individual. We have published it to support the work of MPs. You
should not rely upon it as legal or professional advice, or as a substitute for
it. We do not accept any liability whatsoever for any errors, omissions or
misstatements contained herein. You should consult a suitably qualified
professional if you require specific advice or information. Read our briefing
‘Legal help: where to go and how to pay’ for further information about
sources of legal advice and help. This information is provided subject to the
conditions of the Open Parliament Licence.

Sources and subscriptions for MPs and staff

We try to use sources in our research that everyone can access, but
sometimes only information that exists behind a paywall or via a subscription
is available. We provide access to many online subscriptions to MPs and

parliamentary staff, please contact hoclibraryonline@parliament.uk or visit
commonslibrary.parliament.uk/resources for more information.

Feedback

Every effort is made to ensure that the information contained in these publicly
available briefings is correct at the time of publication. Readers should be
aware however that briefings are not necessarily updated to reflect
subsequent changes.

If you have any comments on our briefings please email

papers@parliament.uk. Please note that authors are not always able to

engage in discussions with members of the public who express opinions
about the content of our research, although we will carefully consider and
correct any factual errors.

You can read our feedback and complaints policy and our editorial policy at

commonslibrary.parliament.uk. If you have general questions about the work
of the House of Commons email hcenquiries@parliament.uk.

Page 32


https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn03207/
mailto:hoclibraryonline@parliament.uk
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/resources/
mailto:papers@parliament.uk
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/
mailto:hcenquiries@parliament.uk

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

Contents

Summary 4
1 The Licensing Act 2003 and cumulative impact 5
2 Cumulative impact assessments (CIAs) 6
2.1  Cumulative impact and the licensing objectives 6
2.2  Publishing a CIA 7
2.3 Effect of ClAs 8
2.4 Reviewing CIAs 8
2.5 Examples of statements of licensing policies and CIAs 9
3 Evaluation of ClAs 10

Page 33

3 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025



Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

Summary

The Licensing Act 2003 governs the sale and supply of alcohol in England and
Wales. The act has four licensing objectives:

e the prevention of crime and disorder
e public safety

o the prevention of public nuisance

e the protection of children from harm

Under the act, licensing authorities have responsibility for issuing premises

licences and club premises certificates.

Section 5 of the 2003 act requires a licensing authority to publish a statement
of its licensing policy at least every five years. A policy must consider any
cumulative impact assessment (CIA) the authority has published under
section 5A. The purpose of a CIA is to help the authority limit the licences that
it grants in areas where there is evidence to show that the number or density
of licensed premises may be contributing to problems that are undermining
licensing objectives.

Detailed information on statements of licensing policy and CIAs is available in

chapter 14 of Home Office guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 (PDF)(February 2025).

Page 34

4 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/contents
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing#premises-licence
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing#premises-licence
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/alcohol-licensing#club-premises-certificates
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/5
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/5A
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/5A
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/67b73b7b78dd6cacb71c6ac8/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_-_October+2024+_1_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/67b73b7b78dd6cacb71c6ac8/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_-_October+2024+_1_.pdf

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

The Licensing Act 2003 and cumulative
impact

Sections 5 and 5A of the 2003 act refer to CIAs. However, ClAs did not have a
statutory basis until 6 April 2018 when section 141 of the Policing and Crime
Act 2017 came into force. Until that date, “cumulative impact” and cumulative
impact policies (CIPs) were only described in Home Office guidance on the
2003 act. The guidance issued in March 2015 described cumulative impact as
“the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a
significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area.™

Why was the 2003 act amended?
The then government’s modern crime prevention strategy (PDF)(March 2016)

included a range of measures to prevent alcohol-related crime and disorder.?
One of these was to put CIPs “on a statutory footing, to strengthen the ability
of authorities to control the availability of alcohol and reduce alcohol-related
crime and disorder, as well as providing industry with greater clarity about
how they can be used”.?

A November 2016 impact assessment (IA)(PDF) on giving CIPs a statutory
basis said the system at that time could, among other things, lead to

disproportionate restrictions on new business.* According to the IA, licensing
and enforcement partners welcomed the government’s proposal. Most
industry partners were “not opposed in principle” but “wanted to use the
opportunity to ensure clarity on the process and function of CIPs and
transparency over the evidence used to implement CIPs”.®

When introducing the changes through the Policing and Crime Bill 2016/17,
the government said that CIPs needed reform because not all licensing
authorities were making effective or consistent use of them.®

' Home Office, Amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, March 2015,
para 13.20

2 Home Office, Modern Crime Prevention Strategy (PDF), March 2016, chapter 7 (accessed 9 July 2025)

3 Asabove, p36

4 Home Office, Impa putting ila
(PDF). November 2016, p8 (accessed 9 July 2025)

5 Asabove, p7

& Baroness Chisholm of Owlpen at HL Deb 9 November 2016 c1192

Page 35

5 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/5
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/3/section/141/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/3/section/141/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/509831/6.1770_Modern_Crime_Prevention_Strategy_final_WEB_version.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/566814/CIPs_Impact_Assessment_-_RPC_validated__2_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/509831/6.1770_Modern_Crime_Prevention_Strategy_final_WEB_version.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/566814/CIPs_Impact_Assessment_-_RPC_validated__2_.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/566814/CIPs_Impact_Assessment_-_RPC_validated__2_.pdf
https://hansard.parliament.uk/Lords/2016-11-09/debates/CA54673A-3418-44F9-8318-7EEBFE85692A/PolicingAndCrimeBill

2.1

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

Cumulative impact assessments (CIAS)

A licensing authority must publish a statement of its licensing policy at least
every five years. This sets out how the authority intends to operate and
promote the licensing objectives in its area. It must be published before the
authority carries out any function in respect of individual applications and
notices made under the terms of the 2003 act. Before determining its policy,
an authority must consult the following:

the chief officer of police for the area
e the fire and rescue authority for the area

o each local authority’s Director of Public Health in England or Local
Health Board in Wales

e persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders

e persons/bodies representative of local club premises certificate holders
o persons/bodies representative of local personal licence holders

e persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area’

In determining or revising its policy, an authority must consider any CIA it has
published under the act.

Cumulative impact and the licensing
objectives

Home Office guidance on the 2003 act gives examples of how the density of
licensed premises can impact on the licensing objectives:

14.21 In some areas where the number, type or density of licensed premises,
such as those selling alcohol or providing late night refreshment, is high or
exceptional, serious problems of nuisance and disorder may arise outside or
some distance from those premises. Such problems generally occur as a result
of large numbers of drinkers being concentrated in an area, for example when
leaving premises at peak times or when queuing at fast food outlets or for
public transport.

Page 36

6 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/5

2.2

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

14.22 Queuing in itself may lead to conflict, disorder and anti-social behaviour.
Moreover, large concentrations of people may also attract criminal activities
such as drug dealing, pick pocketing and street robbery. Local services such
as public transport, public lavatory provision and street cleaning may not be
able to meet the demand posed by such concentrations of drinkers leading to
issues such as street fouling, littering, traffic and public nuisance caused by
concentrations of people who cannot be effectively dispersed quickly.

14.23 Variable licensing hours may facilitate a more gradual dispersal of
customers from premises. However, in some cases, the impact on surrounding
areas of the behaviour of the customers of all premises taken together will be
greater than the impact of customers of individual premises. These conditions
are more likely to arise in town and city centres, but may also arise in other
urban centres and the suburbs, for example on smaller high streets with high
concentrations of licensed premises.®

Publishing a CIA

A licensing authority can publish a CIA to help limit the number or types of
licence applications granted where there is evidence showing that the
number or density of premises in an area is having a cumulative impact and
leading to problems which are undermining the licensing objectives. Section
5A of the 2003 act sets out what a licensing authority needs to do to publish a

CIA. Chapter 14 of Home Office guidance on the 2003 act (PDF)(February
2025) provides further detail.

Evidence of cumulative impact

There must be an evidential basis for the decision to publish a CIA.
Information which licensing authorities can use includes:

e local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types
of crime and crime hotspots

o statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences

e health-related statistics such as alcohol-related emergency attendances
and hospital admissions

e environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and
noise

e complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include
complaints raised by local residents or residents’ associations

8 Home Office, A ] ]
2025 (accessed 9 July 2025)

003 (PDF), February

Page 37

7 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/67b73b7b78dd6cacb71c6ac8/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_-_October+2024+_1_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/67b73b7b78dd6cacb71c6ac8/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_-_October+2024+_1_.pdf

2.3

2.4

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

e residents’ questionnaires
o evidence from local and parish councillors
e evidence obtained through local consultation °

In addition to the above, a licensing authority can consider its own evidence
of the impact of licensable activities within its area.

Effect of CIAs

According to the Home Office guidance, a CIA is a “strong statement of
intent” about an authority’s approach to licence applications.” A CIA will
explain that it is likely that granting further premises and/or club premises
certificates in an area would be inconsistent with an authority’s duty to
promote the licensing objectives."

The publication of a CIA does not change the way that licensing decisions are
made. Applications for new licences or variations to existing licences must
still be considered on an individual basis. Applications that are unlikely to
add to the cumulative impact on the licensing objectives should be granted.™
The Home Office guidance explains:

14.28 While the evidence underpinning the publication of a CIA should
generally be suitable as the basis for a decision to refuse an application or
impose conditions, it does not change the fundamental way that decisions are
made under the 2003 Act. Each decision in an area subject to a CIA therefore
still needs to be made on a case-by-case basis and with a view to what is
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. Importantly, the
publication of a CIA would not remove a licensing authority’s discretion to
grant applications for new licences or applications to vary existing licences,
where the authority considers this to be appropriate in the light of the
individual circumstances of the case.

Reviewing CIAs

A licensing authority must review a CIA within three years. In doing so, it must
consult with the persons listed in section 5(3) of the 2003 act. If, after
consultation, an authority no longer holds the opinion set out in the CIA, it
must publish a statement making clear that any reference to the CIA in its

9 Asabove, para 14.29
©  As above, para 14.40
" As above, para 14.39
2 As above, para 14.44

Page 38

8 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025



2.5

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

licensing policy statement no longer applies. Reference to the CIA within the
licensing policy statement should be removed at the earliest opportunity.™

If an authority’s opinion remains as set out in a CIA, it must revise the CIA
setting out why this is the case.™

Examples of statements of licensing policies
and ClAs

Statements of licensing policy, CIAs, and reviews of CIAs can be found on the
websites of individual licensing authorities - see, for example:

e Middlesbrough Council, Statement of licensing policy and cumulative
impact assessment

*  Newcastle City Council, Statement of licensing policy 2023-28 (PDF), see

chapter 7 on cumulative impact

e  City of York Council, Statement of licensing policy 2025-30 (PDF) and
Cumulative impact assessment 2024 (PDF)

e Croydon Council, Statement of licensing policy 2023-28 (PDF), see pp8-11

and appendix 3 on cumulative impact.

e Merton Council, Cumulative impact policy 2024-2027 (PDF)™

B As above, para 14.35
" As dbove, para 14.36
5 All accessed 9 July 2025

Page 39

9 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025


https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/business-and-licensing/licences/statement-of-licensing-policy/
https://www.middlesbrough.gov.uk/business-and-licensing/licences/statement-of-licensing-policy/
https://www.newcastle.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2023-11/Newcastle%20City%20Council%20Statement%20of%20Licensing%20Policy%202023%20-%202028_0.pdf
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/463/statement-of-licensing-policy-2025-to-2030
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/464/cumulative-impact-assessment-2024
https://www.croydon.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2023-01/Statement-of-Licensing-Policy-2023-2028_rev.pdf
https://www.merton.gov.uk/system/files/London%20Borough%20of%20Merton%20Cumulative%20Impact%20Policy.pdf

Alcohol licensing: cumulative impact assessments

Evaluation of ClIAs

A September 2019 paper examined ClAs in Southwark’s “thriving night-time

economy”." The paper concluded that CIAs could “be used as policy levers to
shape local alcohol environments to support the licensing goals of specific
geographical areas and diversify the night-time economy”:

... While we found no evidence that [CIAs] limit the density of different types of
licensed venues, [CIAs] may be used as a means to encourage certain types of
outlet over others and thereby change the tone of an area’s night-time
economy. To further support the development of local licensing policies, an
evidence-base for the diversification of the night-time economy is needed, and
further work to understand the impact of different outlet types on alcohol-
related harm outcomes is required.”

The authors claimed their research findings were “generalisable to similar
urban centres both in the UK and internationally” and that the methodology
used was reproducible and scalable. Similar studies across local authorities,
or on a regional or national scale were recommended.™

ilative impa ones influence alcoho

ondon Borough, BMJ Open, vol 9(9),

7 As above
®  As above

Page 40

10 Commons Library Research Briefing, 9 July 2025


https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6773415/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6773415/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6773415/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6773415/

The House of Commons Library is a research and
information service based in the UK Parliament.

Our impartial analysis, statistical research and
resources help MPs and their staff scrutinise
legislation, develop policy, and support constituents.

Our published material is available to everyone
on commonslibrary.parliament.uk.

Get our latest research delivered straight to your inbox.
Subscribe at commonslibrary.parliament.uk/subscribe
or scan the code below:

Ob0
ey
e

£
Gifieeos

[ commonslibrary.parliament.uk

Y @commonslibrary

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



THE

LICENSING GUYS

KEEPING YOU LEGAL AND TRADING

Crime & ASB Data
Iin the vicinity of the
28 Craven Park Road,
HARLESDEN
NW10 4AB

Source: Police.UK Crime Mapper

Page 43



Apr 2025

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

T SLULIU UIHOTA s

Pitshen Ltd African ‘ All Crimes (250) - ‘
\o/ Caribbe Food Manor/ParkiRd
51B
‘ April 2025 - ‘
Harlesden Library Plus'@' 2 crimes were reported here in

April 2025

\o/- B Locz work Other theft 1

324
Shoplifting 1
Craven Park

2 @ Road Post Office

"'| 284
ay ;
_d (T Maric's
@ Portuguese
-@-Deli Tamariz
e -\O/-Magic Nails
Newsfare (&Y
A4 +
33 I 224 View crime definitions
18
Trinidad Roti Shop () e
Goodle Caliteany 4 o) ~oL Download area crime data [
ODg Keyboard shortcuts  Map data ©2025 10 M bememe—d  Terms Repori a map error

May 2025

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

ManoriParkiRd ‘ All Crimes (305) - ‘

o,Pitshen Ltd Afri
"=/ Caribbe Food

518

‘ May 2025 - ‘

Harlesden Library Plus @ 38

5 crimes were reported here in

May 2025
(OB Locz work Anti-social behaviour 2
24
2 9 ST Criminal damage and arson 1
\_/ Road Post Office
' 45 45A 284 Violence and sexual offences 1
_ a8 Cutz 9/ )
> Ty Mario's i
o @ Meros All other crime 1
m -@-Deli Tamariz
b \/ g-Magic Nails
Newsfare @/
R k- + View crime definitions
18
Trinidad Rccni %EOD'Q‘ — ,
aripbean
Erapml — < Download area crime data [
Oog Terms Report &8 map error

Page 44



Jun 2025

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

1548

40 Studio Unisex ™

‘ All Crimes (316) - ‘

3 \Pitshen Ltd African
o

Caribbe Food ManorParkiRd

18 ‘ June 2025 - ‘

8 crimes were reported here in

Harlesden Library Plus-@-
June 2025

Anti-social behaviour 4
9- B Locz work
324 Bicycle theft 2
Y a0 Craven Park
Road Post Office Other theft 1
)| 268
) N All other crime 1
- 4 .m.Marlc s
_ Y Portugusse
d -@-DeIiTamariz
&P Magic Nails
o o
Newsfare @ +
224 View crime definitions
33
314
Goodle inidediotishan \@/ — | Download area crime data [}
00g Keyboard shortcuts  Map data £2025 10m Terms Reporta map error

Jul 2025

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

A0 STUdIO Unisex o

s () Pitshen Ltd African ‘ Alll Crimes (352) - ‘
R d

Caribbe Food ManoriParkiRd

o ‘ July 2025 - ‘

2 crimes were reported here in July

Harlesden Library PIUS'Q'
\/
2025

9-3 P ok Violence and sexual offences 2
324
0 Craven Park
Road Post Office
I'I 284
e y ;
Al Ty Mario's
/,/ @ Fortuguese
'@'Deli Tamariz
'\O/'Magic Nails
Newsfare-e-
A4 n
5 224 View crime definitions
314 }
Trinidad Roti Shop Q) T .
Goodle Caribbean "W/ \ Download area crime data [}
00g Terms Report 8 map error

Page 45



Aug 2025

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

L IS Ike Star Hair,
20 Studio Unisex\o/ ‘ All Crimes (330) A ‘
3 \Pitshen Ltd African
; \O/Caribbe Food Manor/ParkiRd
S ‘ August 2025 v ‘
9 crimes were reported here in
Harlesden Library Plus-@- August 2025

Violence and sexual offences 5
9- B Locz work
5 e Anti-social behaviour 1
.q 9/ CalifornialNail|[Fashions
Craven Park
\ & @ Road Post Office Burglary 1
b 284
_ All other crime 2
2 "
_d (T Mario’s
/’/ @ Portuguese
- @ Deli Tamariz
.o.Magic Kimila
Newsfare @/ 7 --
View crime definitions
5 224

3A
Download area crime data [§

d  Terms Reportamaperror

=

Trinidad Roti Shop (M
Google rinida OJMDD I!!'I.1lJm

Sep 2025

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

‘ All Crimes (283) - ‘

D, Pitshen Ltd African
4

Caribbe Food Manor ParkiRd

518
‘ September 2025 - ‘

arlesden Library Plus (L)) . .
o @ 9 crimes were reported here in
September 2025
Q)8 Locz work 7 Anti-social behaviour 5
324
X r Craven Park . Criminal damage and arson 1
Road Past Office g
| 288 Other theft 1
i 4 ;
- Ty Mario's i
L @ e N All other crime 2
-@-Deli Tamariz
-o-Magic Nails
Newsfare @/ 7
228
g | + View crime definitions
18
Trinidad Roti Shop (M), —_
tnided Rt 90 @) X ,
Goodle — Download area crime data [§
00g Terms Report a map error

Page 46



S$182 Guidance:

Para2.27

“Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the personal
responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in ASB [etc] is
accountable in their own right.”

Localised Stats to NW10 4AB:

ASB | Bike | Damage | Public | Violent/ | Shop | Burg | Other | All | Total
Order | Sexual | lifting Other
Apr 2 1 1 2
May 2 1 1 1 5
Jun 4 2 1 1 8
Jul 2 2
Aug 1 1 5 1 1 9
Sep 5 1 1 1 9
Total 12 2 5 0 8 1 1 4 3 35

35 incidents over 6 months = Average of 5.8 incidents pcm

Average of 1 incident every 5.2 days

ASB =2 incidents per month

Damage = 0.8 incident per month

Violent/Sexual =1.3 incidents per month

Public Order =Zero incidents for 6 months

Page 47



Crime in Brent compared with crime in similar areas

In the year ending June 2025, the crime rate in Brent was about the same as the average

crime rate across similar areas.

Edit crime type

All Crime W

c

=]

o]

=

2 120

[=]

j= 8

=

g 100

G_

T &0

L:E]

j= 8

w

@ 60

E

540

=

o

= 20

=]

bt

2 0

- = = = =] = = = = =

= £ E = = = ] =) 2 T

= E =

o ] E E =] @ c 5 £
= L S I w B w =

I I —

Wandswarth
Waltham Farest
Southend-on-Sea
Lewisham
Greenich
Hauns! ow

Page 48



Crime in Brent compared with crime in similar areas

In the year ending June 2025, the violence and sexual offences crime rate in Brent was about
the same as the average violence and sexual offences crime rate across similar areas.

Edit crime type

Violence and sexual offences V} Update

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

Falice recorded crimes per 1,000 papulation

W arton
Wandsworth
Waltham Forest
Enfield
Haringey
Hackney

Ealing

BErant

Lambeth
Croydan
Lewisham
Houns|ow
Greenwich
Slough
Southend-on-Sea

Page 49



Crime in Brent compared with crime in similar areas

In the year ending June 2025, the public order offence rate in Brent was about the same as

the average public order offence rate across similar areas.

Edit crime type

Falice recorded crimes per 1,000 population
o = MW ok S =] 28

M ertan

Enfield
Waltham Forast
Wandsworth
Croydan

Brent

Haringey

Ealing

Lambeth

Hauns o
Graanwich
Lewisham
Hackney
Southend-on-Sea
Slough

Page 50



Crime in Brent compared with crime in similar areas

In the year ending June 2025, the criminal damage and arson rate in Brent was about the
same as the average criminal damage and arson rate across similar areas.

Edit crime type

Criminal damage and arson VI

FPalice recorded crimas per 1,000 population
@ = MW s o~ 22

Wandsworth

M erton

Enfiald

Brent

Ealing

Hackney
Waltham Forest
Haringey
Lewisham
Greemwich
Lambeth
Croydon
Haounslow
Slough
Southend-on-Sea

- Lower bound - Most Similar Group - Upper bound

dverage

Page 51



in the

ther areas

th crime in o

Brent compared wi

ime in

Cr

Metropolitan Police force area

In the year ending June 2025, the crime rate in Brent was lower than average for the

Metropolitan Police area

Edit crime type

Update

All Crime

lBlsuLisap Jo IO
Lapuies

BES[BUD ' UojBUISUSY
LIojEu S|

MemUINoS

lagLien

fauyoeH

LLELIN 4 %7 LS BLUILLE H
SlaleH Jamo|
LLIELWE N

fafuleH

uopBul|iH

MO SUNDH

TITVEEN )

LLIEL|S W&

uaig

Lweyuabeq § Bupieg
Gunes

uophoID

HEE]

15840 4 LB YR,

L S PLIB A,
abpugpay

BupaneH

faLiolg

jauieq

LopE

MMoLIEH

haxeg

saLey | Lodn uojshury
uopng

SaLLUEL ] Lodn pUoLLIL2H

oo 9o 9 9o 9
[ SO - T ¥ e T o N ¥ o RO |
MM NN e

=R =]
Ly

uolended pop 'l Jed sewus peplosal asled

- Force average

Page 52



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
UNAUDITED ACCOUNTS- CRAVEN PARK LOCAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

Page 53



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
UNAUDITED ACCOUNTS- CRAVEN PARK LOCAL
CONTENTS

Page
Business information
Approval of the accounts
Accountants' report
Profit and loss account

Balance sheet

= . -

MNotes to the accounts

-2
Page 54



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
BUSINESS INFORMATION

Proprietor

Business address

Accountants

MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
28 Craven Park Read

L.ondon

London

NW10 4AB

28 Craven Park Road
London

London

NW10 4AB

AGM Business Solutions
98 Exeter Road

Harrow

HAZ 9PL.

Pade 55



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
APPROVAL OF THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

| approve these accounts, comprising the Profit and Lass account, the Balance Sheet and the related notes. | confirm that | have
made available all relevant records and information.

SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR

5 January 2026

4.
Page 56



ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT TO MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR (YOU) ON THE
UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR (YOUR
BUSINESS) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

In accordance with our letter of engagement dated , we have prepared for your approval the financial information of your business
for the year ended 30 September 2025 which comprises of the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, and explanatory notes
from the accounting records and information and explanations which you have provided us with,

As a member firm of the Institute of Financial Accountants (IFA), we are subject to its ethical and other professional requirements
which are detailed at hitps://ifa.org.uk/about-usfacting-in-the-public-interast/memberregulations.

This report is made solely to you, in accordance with our letter of engagement dated . Our work has been undertaken solely to
prepare for your approval the financial information of your business and fo state those matters that we have agreed to state to you
it this report. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respansibility to anyone other than you, for our
work, or for this report.

You have approved the financial information for and have acknowledged your responsibility for it, for the appropriateness of the
tinancial reporting framework adopted and for providing all information and explanations necessary for its compilation. You have
confirmed that you know of no reason why your business requires an audit,

It is your duty to ensure that MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR has kept adequate accounting records and to prepare
accounts that give a true and falr view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit/(foss) of MR SATHIASEELAN
EASWARAKUMAR. You have confirmed that MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR is exempt from the statutory audit
requirement for the year ended 30 September 2025,

We have not verified the accuracy or completeness of the accounting records or information and explanations you have given to us
and we do not, therefore, express any opinion on the financial information.

AGM Business Solutions
Financial Accountant

98 Exeter Road
Harrow
HA2 9PL

5 January 2026

Page 57



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

2025

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other business income

Expenses

Rent, rates, power and insurance costs
Phone, fax, stationery and other office costs
Accountancy, legal and other professional fees

Profit

-6 -
Page 58



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

Fixed assets

Equipment, machinery and motor vehicles

Current assets

Stock and work in progress
Cash in hand

Current liabilities

Other liabilities and accruals

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital account

Balance at start of period
Net profit
Capital infroduced

Notes

2025




MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

1 Accounting policies

Accounting basis

The accounts have been prepared under the historlcal cost convention and in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice.

Turnover

Turnover represents the value, net of VAT and discounts, of goods provided to customers and work carried out in respect of
services provided to customers,

2 Profit and loss account analysis 2025
£

Turnover
Sales

Cost of sales
Purchases
Increase in stocks

Other business income
Other income

Premises costs
Rent
Rates
Light and heat
Property insurance
Cleaning

Office administration costs
Telephone and fax
Internet
Paostage
Stationery and printing

Professional fees
Accountancy fees

Page 60



MR SATHIASEELAN EASWARAKUMAR
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2025

3 Piant, machinery and motor vehicles Fixtures &
fittings
£
Cost
At 1 October 2024
Additions

At 30 September 2025
Depreciation
At 30 September 2025

Net book value
At 30 September 2025

Pade 61



Page 62



[ S

14th Navember 2025

To the Licensing Authority,

Brent Council
Brenl Civic Centre, Engineers Way, Wembley, HAS OF J

Subject: Representation in support of an alcohol licence application for Craven Park
Local at 28 Craven Park Road, Harlesden, NW10 4AB.

Dear Sir/Madam,

We are writing to express our full support for the premises licence application submitted by
Craven Park Local located at 28 Craven Park Road, Harlesden, NW10 4AB.

We believe that granting this licence will have a positive effect on the local community and
will promote the four licensing objectives in the following ways:

*The Prevention of Crime and Disorder / Public Safety*

This Post Office is a well-managed business that contributes positively to the area. The
owners are responsible members of the community who have installed CCTV, good lighting,
plans for staff fraining on responsible alcohol sales, and a commitment o checking ID. In my
experience, the shop is a safe and well-run environment. '

*The Prevention of Public Nuisance*

The shop's proposed hours of operation are very reasonable and show consideration for
local residents and neighbours. The nature of the business, which focuses on the Post
Office, is unlikely to attract the kind of late-night footfall or rowdy behaviour sometimes
associated with other types of venues. Having more active businesses In the early evening
could potentially increase footfall and deter anti-social behaviour in the vicinity.

*General Support and Community Benefit*

Craven Park Local is already a valuable asset to the street, bringing vibrancy and a
welcoming space to the area. The services offered by this Post Office are essential to the
local community and has been something we have needed for a long time. An alcohol
licence would enable them to enhance their current offerings, providing a convenient and

quality addition for ocal customers.

For these reasons, we respeclfully request that you look favourably upon this application.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Yours faithfully, ) : i




Page 64



Below is a breakdown of calls made to police made each calendar month for Craven
Park Road. The first column shows the number of calls made to police. The second
shows criminal investigations of all types. This is followed by the number or arrests and
searches made each month. The final column shows the remaining calls to police
which are a variety of ASB (Anti-Social Behaviour), street drinking, noise complaints etc.

The figures show a rise in crime, ASB and arrests in the warmer summer months. Police
expect arise in street crime during the summer months which is more than often
fuelled by alcohol and street drinking.

The entire length of Craven Park Road suffers from continual ASB, littering, street crime
and street drinking, which | believe is highlighted in figures below. These figures are
taken directly from the met police data base giving an overall picture of Craven Park
Road for a six month period.

Craven Park Road - Crime Statistics - 2025

Month Total calls to Crimes | Arrests | Searches Other - ASB / street
police reported drinking / calls to police
etc
April 88 24 4 3 57
May 82 31 4 0 47
June 139 48 4 9 78
July 142 39 10 12 81
August 189 45 13 15 116
September 130 34 5 5 86

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Application for a New Premises Licence by Mr Sathiaseelan Easwarakumar for the premises known as Craven Park Local, 28 Craven Park Road, NW10 4AB, pursuant to the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003
	3.2 Application
	3.3 Operating Schedule
	3.4 Plan
	Sheets and Views
	LIC-01


	3.5 Police Reps
	3.6 Agent Response to Police Rep
	3.7 Licensing Rep
	3.8 Cllr Kelcher Rep
	3.9 OS Map
	3.10 Supplementary - 300-25 House of Commons Briefing Paper on CIAs
	Summary
	1 The Licensing Act 2003 and cumulative impact
	Why was the 2003 act amended?

	2 Cumulative impact assessments (CIAs)
	2.1 Cumulative impact and the licensing objectives
	2.2 Publishing a CIA
	Evidence of cumulative impact

	2.3 Effect of CIAs
	2.4 Reviewing CIAs
	2.5 Examples of statements of licensing policies and CIAs

	3 Evaluation of CIAs

	3.11 Supplementary - 300-25 Crime  ASB Stats
	3.12 Supplementary - 300-25 Accounts - 30 September 2025 - Redacted
	3.13 Supplementary - 300-25 Signatures of Support - Redacted
	3.14 Police - Supplementary




